
2~ juin 1949 

EIGHTH MEETING 
H cld at Lake Success, New Y ark, 

on 1.-..,f onday, 27 June 1949, at 2.30 p.m. 

President: Mr. R. GARREAU (France). 

79 

Pres_ent: The representatives of the following 
~untnes: Australia, Belgium, China, Costa Rica, 
:;-_~nee, Iraq, Mexico, New Zealand, Philippines, 
~-:non of Soviet Socialist Republics, United 
-~mgdom, United States of America. 

1 7 · Examination of annual reports on 
the administration of Trust Terri· 
t.ories (continued) 

XAGRU, YEAR ENDING 30 }UNE 1948 (T/233 AND 
T /347) (CONTINUED) 

A: tlze invitation of the President, Mr. Halligan, 
stccwl representative of the Administering Au
thority for Nauru, took his place at the Council 
tar! c. 

Political advancement (concluded) 

).Ir. SoLDATOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Re
p~ blics) wished the special representative for 
:--: auru to clarify the reply given to question 4 of 
part II (T/347), which stated that Nauruans 
were appointed to important administrative posts 
when they had shown proof of their ability to fill 
such posts. He wished to know on what bodies 
members of the indigenous population could prove 
their capabilities and what was the authority 
which decided whether such a person was quali
fied to occupy an important post. 

The report1 indicated that the administrative 
staff was composed of twelve Europeans and 200 
~ auruans. The latter carried out entirely subor
dinate duties. It would be interesting to know 
how the replacing of the twelve Europeans by 
indigenous inhabitants would be effected, and 
what measures had been taken to that end. 

Mr. Soldatov asked whether the special repre
sentative could give, for purposes of comparison, 
the figures for 1948 and for the years preceding 
the war. 

:Mr. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
Nauru) explained that the Administrator decided, 
on the advice of his staff, whether an indigenous 
inhabitant was qualified to occupy an important 
administrative post. 

The post of Native Affairs Officer, which had 
formerly been held by a European, had been 
given about a month previously to an indigenous 
inhabitant. Nauruans would eventually be called 
upon to occupy all the higher administrative posts. 
Europeans would be replaced whenever qualified 
indigenous inhabitants could be found. 

1 See Report to the General Assembly of the United 
Nations on the administration of the Territory of Nauru 
from 1st July, 1947 to 30th June, 1948: Commonwealth 
of Australia, 1948. ' 

8eme seance 

HUITIEME SEANCE 
Temte a Lake Success, New-York, 

le lundi 27 juin 1949, a 14 h. 30. 
President: M. R. GARREAU (France). 

Presents: Les representants des pays suivants: 
Australie, Belgique, Chine, Costa-Rica, France, 
Irak, Mexique, Nouvelle-Zelande, Philippines, 
Union des Republiques socialistes sovietiques, 
Royaume-Uni, Etats-Unis d'Amerique. 

l 7. Examen des rapports 
!'administration des 
sons tutelle (suite) 

annuels sur 
Territoires 

NAURU, ANNEE SE TERMINANT LE 30 JUIN 1948 
(T/233 ET T/347) (SUITE) 

Sur !'invitation du President, M. Halligan, 
representant special de l' Autorite chargee de 
!'administration de Nauru, prend place a la table 
du Conseil. 

Progrl:s politique (fin) 

M. SoLDATOV (Union des Republiques socialistes 
sovietiques) aimerait que le representant special 
pour Nauru precisiit la reponse donnee a la ques
tion 4 de la section II (T /347). Il y est dit, en 
effet, que les N auruans sont nommes a des postes 
importants de !'administration lorsqu'ils font 
preuve de competence. M. Soldatov voudrait 
savoir dans quels organes les elements de la popu
lation autochtone peuvent prouver leurs capacites 
et queUe est l'autorite qui decide si un Nauruan 
est capable d'occuper un paste important. 

Le rapport1 indique que le personnel de !'ad
ministration est compose de douze Europeens et 
de 200 Nauruans. Ces derniers remplissent des 
fonctions tout a fait secondaires. Il serait interes
sant de savoir comment s'effectuera le remplace
ment des douze Europeens par des N auruans et 
queUes sont les mesures qui ont ete prises a cette 
fin. 

M. Soldatov demande si le representant special 
pourrait fournir, a titre de comp~raisoD:, les 
chiffres de 1948 et ceux des annees qUI ont 
precede la guerre. 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) explique que l' Admi_nistrateur decide, 
apres avis de son entourage, s1 u_n Nauruan est 
qualifie pour occuper un poste tmportant dans 
1' administration. 

L'un des postes occupes jusqu'a present par un 
Europeen a ete attribue, il y .a environ un m?is, 
a un autochtone: le paste de dtrecteur des affatres 
indigenes. Les Nauruans sont, apl?eles ~ occ?rer 
eventuellement tous les postes eleves de 1 admmts
tration. Le remplacement des Europeens aura 
lieu chaque fois que l'on trouvera des autochtones 
qualifies. 

1 Voir Report to the General Assembly of the United 
Nations on the administration of the Territory of Nauru 
from 1st July, 1947, to 30th June, 1948.: Commonwealth 
of Australia, 1948 (document non tradutt). 



8th meeting 

In 1920 the police force was the only service 
employing indigenous inhabitants; in 1923 certain 
subordinate posts had been given to Nauruans, and 
their number had progressively increased up to 
1948. At the time of speaking, there were 209 
?\ auruans in the administration : 27 in the medical 
services, 3 of whom were doctors; 44 in the police 
force; 7 in native affairs; 90 in public works; 7 
in the broadcasting services ; 1 supervisor of 
education, 1 school director and 5 teachers were 
Nauruans. 

Mr. SoLDATOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Re
publics) remarked that the majority of the posts 
held by indigenous inhabitants were subordinate 
and entailed no responsibility on the part of those 
occupying them. He wished to know whether 
there existed in Nauru elective, judicial, cultural 
or social bodies in which the indigenous inhabit
ants might participate and which would enable 
them to prove their capacities in those different 
fields. 

The PRESIDENT pointed out that the report 
presented by the Administering Authority gave a 
complete picture of the various organs existing in 
the island of Nauru. The Council had, moreover, 
already discussed at length during its preceding 
meeting the question of the Council of Chiefs, an 
ach·isory body. 

:Jir. H.\LLIGAN (Special representative for 
Xauru) said that, apart from the Council of 
Chiefs, there were no duly constituted organs in 
"·hich the members of the indigenous population 
could show their ability. It \Vas, however, a cus
tom of the Nauruans to meet frequently at the 
Domaneab to indulge in social and cultural ac
tivities outside their official functions; those meet
ings '\"ere of a kind to bring out the qualities of 
certain X auruans. 

:J!r. I XGLE:s (Philippines) drew attention to the 
fact that the supreme law of Nauru was the 
A~;reement of 2 July 1919, amended by the Sup
plementary Agreement of 30 May 1923.1 When 
Nauru became a Trust Territory, the 1919 Agree
ment had not been amended. fvioreover. the special 
representative had pointed out, in reply to ques
tion 2 of part II (T /347), that an amendment of 
the Agreement of 1919 was not contemplated. In 
those circumstances, he wondered whether it 
would not be in accordance with the spirit of the 
Charter and the interests of the inhabitants of 
Nauru for the Administering Authority to con
sider the drawing up of a new constitution, taking 
into account the provisions of the Charter and of 
the Trusteeship Agreement. 

Mr. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
Nauru) explained that the Agreement of 2 July 
1919 did not constitute the supreme law. It had 
been adopted for purely administrative purposes 
and respected the provisions of the Mandate, on 
which the island's government had been based. 
The current administration of Nauru was defined 
by the Trusteeship Agreement to which the 
Agreement of 2 July 1919 was subordinate. As 
there was no contradiction between the Trustee
ship Agreement and the Agreement of 1919, it 
did not seem necessary for the moment to alter 
the Agreement of 1919, as amended in 1923. 

1 Ibid., see preceding footnote, appendix XIV. 

80 27 June 1949 

M. Halligan indique que, en 1920, !a police etait 
le seul service employant quelques autochtones; 
en 1923, certains pastes subalternes ont ete confies 
a des N auruans ; leur nombre a augmente progres
sivement jusqu'en 1948; a l'heure actuelle, 209 
Nauruans font partie de !'administration: 27, dans 
les services medicaux, dont 3 medecins; 44, dans 
la police; 7, dans les affaires indigenes; 90, dans 
les travaux publics; 7, dans les services de la radio; 
un controleur de !'education, un directeur d'ecole 
et 5 instituteurs sont des Nauruans. 

M. SoLDATov (Union des Republiques socialistes 
sovietiques) fait remarquer que la plupart des 
pastes occupes par des autochtones sont subal
ternes et n'entrainent aucune part de responsa
bilites pour leurs titulaires. M. Soldatov voudrait 
savoir s'il existe a Nauru des organismes electifs, 
judiciaires, culturels ou sociaux, auxquels pour
raient participer les autochtones et qui leur per
mettraient de prouver leurs capacites dans ces 
differents domaines. 

Le PRESIDENT fait observer que le rapport 
presente par l'Autorite chargee de !'administration 
donne un tableau compet des differents organismes 
existant dans l'ile de Nauru. D'autre part, le 
Conseil a deja longuement discute, au cours de 
sa seance precedente, la question du Conseil des 
Chefs, organe qui a un caractere consultatif. 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) declare qu'a !'exception du Conseil des 
Chefs, il n'existe pas d'organe dument constitue 
dans lequel les autochtones pourraient manifester 
leurs capacites. Toutefois, les Nauruans ont pour 
coutume de se reunir frequemment au Domaneab, 
pour se livrer a des activites sociales et culturelles, 
en dehors de leurs fonctions officielles ; ces 
reunions sont cle nature a mettre en valeur les 
qualites de certains Nauruans. 

1\1. INGLES (Philippines) attire !'attention sur 
le fait que la loi supreme pour Nauru est repre
sentee par !'Accord du 2 juillet 1919, amende par 
1' Accord supplementaire du 30 mai 19231

. Lorsque 
Nauru est devenu un Territoire sous tutelle, 
1' Accord de 1919 n'a pas ete amende. En outre, 
Ie representant special a specifie, en reponse a la 
question 2 de la section II (T /347), qu'un 
amendement a I' Accord de 1919 n'est pas envisage. 
Dans ces conditions, l\L Ingles se demamle s'il 
ne serait pas conforme a !'esprit de Ia Charte et 
aux interets des habitants de Nauru que l'Autorite 
chargee de !'administration envisageat !a redaction 
d'une nouvelle constitution tenant compte des 
dispositions de la Charte et de 1' Accord de tutelle. 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special . p_our 
Nauru) fait observer que !'Accord du 2 Jtllllet 
1919 ne constitue pas !a loi supreme. II a ete 
adopte dans un but purement administratif et en 
respectant Ies dispositions du Mandat; c'est ce 
dernier qui etait a la base du systeme de gouverne
ment de l'ile. A l'heure actuelle, c'est !'Accord 
de tutelle qui definit !'administration de Nauru: 
1' Accord du 2 juillet 1919 lui est subordonne; 
comme il n'y a aucune contradiction entre 1' Accord 
de tutelle et !'Accord de 1919, il ne semble pas 
utile de modifier actuellement 1' Accord de 1919, 
amende en 1923. 

1 Ibid., voir note precedente, appendice XIV. 



27 juin 1949 81 

--~Ir. !XGLES (Philippines) thought the Agree
nx-1t ot 1919 should be altered to take into ac
co"Jnt the new provisions of the Charter and of 
t!:e_ Trusteeship Agreement particularly those 
,rl~Ich provided that the Trusteeship System 
;~c·uld result _in the autonomy or independence 
C· the populat10ns concerned. 

:\lr:- Hoon (Australia) observed that the ex
~~:=-;5~10~ "supreme la'": of the land" used by the 
· -~:hpp1_ne represen~atrve was confusing. There 
:'.-"' In tact no orgamc constitution for Nauru- the 
:s:::_nd ·was administered in accordance with' the 
r:_etropo1itan laws of the Administering Authority. 
T:!e Agreement of 2 July 1919 was an inter
[·:·\·erntnental arrangement, which, when drafted, 
.. :.. d t?-1:-en into account the special circumstances 
! :-eY;:ulmg at that time. A study of that document 
;·,-:·ul?- _show that its aim was to lay down practical 
r_:-o\"lSions for the mining of phosphates. Thus, the 
.-.greement of 1919 should not be considered an 
c :-sanic I a"". but merely an administrative instru
:::ent. 

_ :\lr. INGLES (Philippines) pointed out that if, 
: ~~r example, the Administering Authority contem
~·:2ted the establishment of a legislative body to 
:3..k~ over certain functions which were currently 
~·enormed by the Administrator, such a step could 
:!<Jt be put into effect because it would not be in 
c..~cordance with the provisions of the Agreement 
or 1919. Article 1 of the Agreement provided that 
t.i-le Administrator had full power to promulgate 
2.1l the necessary ordinances for the government 
oi the island. 

:\Ir. I?"oon (Australia) was of the opinion that 
:he contmgency mentioned by the Philippine rep
reoentative could not be taken into consideration 
because such a situation would be tantamount to 
the cessation of the administration of Nauru as a 
Trust Territory. 

:..rr. INGLES (Philippines) said that paragraph 
4 of the Supplementary Agreement of 30 May 
1923 provided that the reports on the administra
tion of Nauru should be submitted to the Council 
oi the League of Nations. In those circumstances, 
it seemed necessary currently to provide that the 
annual reports should be submitted to the Trustee
ship Council. That example showed that the 
Agreement of 2 July 1919 and the Supplementary 
Agreement of 1923 should be modified. 

:Mr. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
~ auru) pointed out that paragraph 4 of the 
Supplementary Agreement of 1923 had become 
inoperative when the Mandate had been replaced 
by the Trusteeship Agreement. The Trusteeship 
.-\greement contained a provision that reports 
should be submitted annually to the General As
sembly; it was therefore unnecessary to amend the 
Agreement of 1919. 

~Ir. INGLES (Philippines) expressed the view 
that a clause similar to the clause which had been 
inserted in 1923, at the time of the Mandate, 
could well be contemplated at the present time, 
because the same considerations applied in both 
cases. 

).lr. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
X auru) stated that he was not in a position to 

8eme seance 

M. INGLES (Philippines) estime que !'Accord 
de 1919 devrait etre modifie pour tenir compte 
des dispositions nouvelles de la Charte et de 
!'Accord de tutelle, notamment de celles qui pre
voient que le Regime de tutelle doit avoir pour 
resultat final l'autonomie ou l'independance des 
populations interessees. 

M. HooD (Australie) fait remarquer que !'ex
pression "loi supreme du pays", employee par le 
representant des Philippines, prete a confusion. 
En effet, il n'y a pas de constitution organique de 
Nauru : l'ile est administree conformement aux 
lois metropolitaines de l'Autorite chargee de !'ad
ministration. L'Accord du 2 juillet 1919 est un 
arrangement intergouvernemental, redige en tenant 
compte des circonstances particulieres a cette 
epoque. L'examen de cet instrument permet de 
constater aisement qu'il a pour objet, notamment, 
des dispositions d'ordre pratique en vue de !'ex
ploitation des phosphates. Ainsi, 1' Accord de 
1919 ne doit pas etre considere comme une loi 
organique, mais simplement comme un instru
ment d'administration. 

M. INGLES (Philippines) fait remarquer que 
si, par exemple, l'Autorite chargee de !'administra
tion envisageait la creation d'un organe legislatif 
auquel seraient confiees certaines fonctions actuel
lement devalues a I' Administrateur, une telle 
mesure ne pourrait pas etre mise en vigueur, car 
elle ne serait pas conforme aux dispositions de 
!'Accord de 1919, dont !'article premier dispose que 
l 'Administrateur a to us pouvoirs pour promulguer 
toutes ordonnances necessaires pour le gouverne
ment de I'ile. 

M. Hoon ( Australie) estime que l'exemple cite 
par le representant des Philippines ne saurait 
etre pris en consideration, car une telle situation 
equivaudrait a !a liquidation du Regime de tutelle 
dans l'ile de Nauru. 

M. INGLES (Philippines) fait observer que le 
paragraphe 4 de 1' Accord supplementaire du 30 
mai 1923 dispose que les rapports sur !'administra
tion de Nauru doivent etre presentes au Conseil 
de la Societe des Nations. Dans ces conditions, 
il semble qu'il soit necessaire, actuellement, de 
prevoir que les rapports annuels doivent etre 
presentes au Conseil de tutelle. Cet exemple 
montre que !'Accord du 2 juillet 1919 et !'Accord 
supplementaire de 1923 doivent etre modifies. 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) fait observer que Ie paragraphe 4 de 
!'Accord supplementaire de 1923 est devenu caduc 
a partir du moment ou le Mandat a ete remplace 
par 1' Accord de tutelle. L' Accord de tutelle con
tient une disposition indiquant que les rapports 
seront adresses annuellement a 1' Assemblee 
generale; dans ces conditions, il n'est pas necessaire 
de modifier !'Accord de 1919. 

M. INGLES (Philippines) estime qu'une clause 
semblable a celle qui a ete inseree en 1923, a 
l'epoque du Mandat, pourrait fort bien etre prevue 
actuellement, car les memes considerations jouent 
dans les deux cas. 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) declare qu'il n'est pas en mesure de 



8th meeting 82 27 June 1949 

give a definitive reply regarding the necessity of 
amending the Agreement of 1919; he would sub
mit the question to his Government. 

Mr. INGLES (Philippines) requested further 
information in connexion with the reply to ques
tion 3 of part II (T/347). He wished to know 
just what plans were under consideration for 
giving the Nauruans a greater share in adminis
trative responsibility. 

Mr. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
Nauru) explained that proposals from the indige
nous population of Nauru had been received about 
six weeks previously by the Administering Au
thority. Those proposals were undergoing careful 
consideration. Complete details on the matter 
would be given in the subsequent annual report. 

l\lr. SoLDATOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Re
publics) requested clarification in connexion with 
the reply to question 6. Had the Administering 
Authority made concrete plans regarding the edu
cation of N auruans? If so, what sums had been 
appropriated for carrying out those plans? 

l\Ir. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
Nauru) pointed out that information on education 
appeared on pages 59 to 63 inclusive of the annual 
report. The plans mentioned in the reply to ques
tion 6 were related to the fact that during a recent 
visit to Nauru the Administering Authority had 
decided that it would be desirable not to confine 
the education of the indigenous population to 
general instruction. If a Nauruan was particularly 
gifted in a given branch of learning, he must be 
given an opportunity to specialize in the field in 
which he had special aptitude, independently of 
the instruction normally received either in Nauru 
or in Australia. The plans in question were still 
in the initial stage; consequently, estimates of the 
budgetary appropriation required to put them into 
effect had not yet been prepared. As those plans 
developed, the Trusteeship Council would be kept 
fully informed through the annual reports. 

Mr. SoLDATOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Re
publics) noted, on the basis of the repli~s t? .ques
tions 7, 8 and 9, that there were no JudtCial or 
executive bodies in which the N auruans took part. 
The Trusteeship Council had received a petition 
from the Nauruan Council of Chiefs requesting 
that the indigenous population should be given 
the opportunity of governing its island. That peti
tion had later been withdrawn by its authors for 
reasons which were not quite clear. It had been 
stated that an Australian minister had visited 
Nauru and had given all the desired assurances 
to the Council of Chiefs. Mr. Soldatov would like 
to know what assurances had been given by that 
minister and what legislative or other measures 
were contemplated by the Administering Au
thority in order to ~nsu;e the part.icipatior: of. t?e 
N auruans in the legtslattve, executive and JUdlClal 
organs. 

Mr. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
Nauru) stated that, according to his recollection, 

donner une reponse definitive sur 1' opporlunite 
d'amender 1' Accord de 1919: il soumettra Ia 
question a son Gouvernement. 

. ~· INGLES , ( Phili~pines) demande des pre
ctstons sur la reponse a Ia question 3 de la section 
II (T/347) ; il voudrait savoir en quoi consistent 
les plans en vue de donner aux Nauruans une part 
plus grande des fonctions administratives. 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) explique que des propositions emanant 
de !a population autochtone de Nauru ont ete 
rec;ues, il y a environ six semaines, par 1' Autorite 
chrgee de !'administration; ces propositions font 
actuellement !'objet d'un examen approfondi. Tous 
les details necessaires a cet egard figureront dans 
le prochain rapport annuel. 

M. SoLDATOV (Union des Republiques socialistes 
sovietiques) aimerait recevoir des precisions en ce 
qui concerne Ia reponse a la question 6. Est-ce 
que l'Autorite chargee de !'administration a etabli 
des projets concrets en ce qui concerne !'educa
tion des Nauruans? Dans !'affirmative, quelle est 
!'importance des credits affectes a !a realisation 
de ces pro jets? 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) signale que les renseignements concernant 
!'education figurent aux pages 59 a 63 du rapport 
annuel. En ce qui concerne Ies plans mentionnes 
dans !a reponse a la question 6, ils sont lies au 
fait que, au cours d'une visite faite recemment a 
Nauru, 1' Autorite chargee de !'administration a 
constate qu'il serait bon de ne pas limiter !'educa
tion des autochtones a une instruction generale: 
si un Nauruan est specialement doue dans une 
branche determinee, il faut permettre a cet individu 
de se specialiser dans le domaine pour lequel il 
a des aptitudes particulieres, cela independamment 
de !'instruction normalement re<;ue, soit a Nauru, 
soit en Australie. Les plans en question en sont 
encore au stade preliminaire; par conseque~t, les 
estimations budgetaires concernant leur mise en 
pratique n'ont pas encore ete elaborees. Au fur 
et a mesure que ces plans se developperont, le 
Conseil de tutelle sera tenu au courant, grace aux 
rapports annuels. 

M. SoLDATOV (Union des Republiques socialistes 
sovietiques) constate, dans Ies reponses aux ques
tions 7, 8 et 9, qu'il n'existe pa~ . d'organe 
judiciaire ou executif auquel parttctpent les 
Nauruans. Or, le Conseil de tutelle a rec;u une 
petition, emanant du Con,sei,l des Chefs. de Nauru, 
demandant que soit donnee a la popula!ton auto~h
tone !a possibilite de gouverner elle-meme son tie. 
Cette petition a ete ensuite retiree par, ses. aut~urs, 
pour des raisons qui ne sont pas tout a fa1~ clatres. 
On a declare qu'un ministre australien avatt rendu 
visite a Nauru et avait donne toutes les assurances 
voulues au Conseil des Chefs. M. Soldatov aime
rait savoir queUes sont les assurances do~n.es 
par ce ministre et queUes sont I;s mes?~es, legi~
latives ou autres, prevues par 1 Autonte. c?ar~ee 
de !'administration pour assurer Ia partlctpatl?n 
des N auruans aux organes legislatifs, executtfs 
et judiciaires. 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pou.r 
Nauru) croit se rappeler que Ia petition du Con set! 



27 juin. 1949 33 

the petition from the Council of Chiefs merely 
r~quested that a visiting mission should go to 
~~uru to. study with the in~i~en?us population 
t ·. _ques~wn of greater partlctpatwn m the ad
n:mtstratwn of the island. The Australian minister 
cc~~ce_:ned had consi<;Iered the question and pro
pc o-als_ had been studted, but the question had not 
been ti.nally settled. 
. . -\lthough unable to say specifically that the in

d:;:enous population would participate in the legis
l~.tlYe. executive and judicial organs of the Ter
~:~,ory, Mr. Halligan could make the general 
'--ten"Ient tha~ the Nauruans would be given a 
g:r<.:ater share m the administration of their island. 

::.I_r. SoLDATOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Re
t:: bh cs) asked the special representative for some 
i:::-tber clarification regarding the reply to ques
Vll1 11 . He wished particularly to know what 
! :-ocedure was followed in the election of the 
~:embers of the Council of Chiefs what were the 
·~:.:alifications necessary to be eligible for election 
<-:-:d to vote, and who supervised the elections. 

::'II r. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
:~au ru) explained that the members of the Coun
cil oi Chiefs for each district were elected by 
>":cret ballot and all the adults, both men and 
-,,-o:11en, residing in the district took part in the 
·.-ote. Any adult residing in the district was eligible 
:.x election. There was no special law governing 
:~e elections, but normal electoral practices were 
C•b::en:ed. \Vhen a vacancy occurred in the Council 
r,f Chiefs, the fact was announced in the Govern-
7i;nzt Ga:;ette, wherein it was stated that the 
.-\dministrator would receive nominations up to a 
certain date, that all residents in the district aged 
c\';enty-one or over were eligible for nomination, 
~t.at the voting would take place on a certain date 
and that it would be obligatory for all those 
registered to vote. 

::.rr. SOLDATOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Re
publics) asked if the special representative could 
gi..-e any details regarding the election which had 
taken place in August 1948, the only election to 
take place in Nauru since the island had become 
a Trust Territory. 

He also asked if the electors were entitled to 
demand the resignation of their representatives on 
the Council of Chiefs. 

::.Ir. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
X auru) explained that there had been four can
didates at the election held in the district of Boe, 
in August 1948. The elected candidate had re
signed and there had been a second election with 
three candidates. Nominations were made by the 
candidate himself or by other people residing in 
the district. 

The Chiefs were elected for an indefinite period. 
The electors had no further rights after the elec
tions as long as their chosen representatives re
mained in office; only the Council of Chiefs itself 
could demand the resignation of one of its 
members. 

Replying to Mr. SOLDATOV (Union of Soviet 
Socialist Republics), Mr. HALLIGAN (Special :ep
resentative for Nauru) stated that the Admtms
tration had no right to interfere in the elections: 
if a candidate received a majority vote, he was 
elected without its being necessary to obtain the 
approval of the Administration. 

8eme seance 

des Chefs demandait simplement qu'une mission 
de visite se rende a Nauru pour examiner avec 
la population autochtone la question d'une plus 
grande participation a !'administration de l'ile. 
Le ministre australien interesse a examine cette 
question: des propositions sont examinees, mais 
la question n'a pas encore re<;u de solution 
definitive . 

Sans etre en mesure de preciser si la population 
autochtone participera aux organes legislatifs, 
executifs et judiciaires du Territoire, M. Halligan 
peut des maintenant affirmer que, d'une n:aniere 
generale, une part plus grande sera accordee aux 
N auruans dans !'administration de leur ile. 

M. SoLDATov (Union des Republiques socialistes 
sovietiques) aimerait que le representant special 
precisat !a reponse a la question 11. M. Soldatov 
voudrait connaitre, notamment, quelle ~st la 
procedure suivie pour les elections des membres 
du Conseil des Chefs, quelles sont les qualites 
requises pour etre eligible et pour etre electeur, 
et qui surveille les elections. 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) explique que les membres du Conseil des 
Chefs sont elus dans chaque district par scrutin 
secret de tous les adultes, hommes et femmes, 
residant dans le district. Tout adulte residant 
dans le district est eligible. I1 n'y a pas de loi 
particuliere au sujet des elections, mais les pra
tiques electorales normales sont respectees. 
Losqu'une vacance a lieu au Conseil des Chefs, 
ce fait est notifie dans le journal officiel Govern
ment Gazette: on indique que les candidatures 
sont re<;ues par 1' Administrateur jusqu'a une date 
determinee, que tous les residents du district 
ages de plus de vingt et un ans peuvent etre 
candidats, que le vote aura lieu a une date fixee 
et qu'il sera obligatoire pour toutes les personnes 
enregistrees. 

M. SoLDATov (Union des Republiques socialistes 
sovietiques) demande si le representant special 
pourrait donner des details sur !'election qui a eu 
lieu en aofrt 1948, la seule qui se soit deroulee a 
Nauru depuis que l'ile est devenue un Territoire 
sons tutelle. 

M. Soldatov demande egalement si les electeurs 
ant le droit d'exiger la demission de leurs repre
sentants au Conseil des Chefs. 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) precise que lors de 1' election dans le 
district de Boe, en aofrt 1948, il y a eu quatre 
candidats; l'elu a demissionne et une deuxieme 
election a eu lieu, pour laquelle trois candidats 
se sont presentes. Les presentations de candi
dature sont faites par !'interesse lui-meme ou par 
d'autres residents du district. 

M. Halligan explique que les Chefs sont elus 
pour une peri ode indeterminee ; leurs electeurs 
n'ont plus aucun droit a~res !'election, tan~ que 
leurs elus restent en fonctwn; seul, le Conse1l des 
Chefs lui-meme peut revoquer l'un de ses membres. 

En reponse a M. SoLDATOV (Union des Repu
bliques socialistes sovietiques), M. HALLIGAN 
(Representant special pour Na':lru) indique que 
1' Administration n'a aucun drmt de regard sur 
les elections: lorsqu'un candidat a re<;u la majorite 
des voix, il est elu sans que !'approbation de 
1' Administration soit necessaire. 



8th meeting 84 

l\fr. SoLDATOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Re
publics) asked if the members of the Council of 
Chiefs had any rights and privileges apart from 
those enjoyed by the rest of the population of 
their district. \ Vere they entitled to receive cer
tain tributes, as was the case in some of the 
Pacific islands and in certain parts of Africa? 

).1r. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
Nauru) said that the Chiefs had no special rights. 
Their only privilege was to look after the interests 
of their fellow citizens and to see that the Council 
of Chiefs was acquainted with their needs. The 
population did not have to pay any kind of tribute 
to the members of the Council of Chiefs. 

1\Ir. SoLDATOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Re
publics) noted from the reply to question 14 that 
the Council of Chiefs had not been vested with any 
legislative or budgetary control. On the other 
hand, the Administering Authority had given the 
assurance that the indigenous population would 
be allowed to participate in the administration of 
the island. He wished to know if any concrete 
promises had been made to the Council of Chiefs. 

:\Ir. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
Nauru) replied that the Administering Authority 
had not made any definite commitments. The 
Australian Government was studying the question 
of granting the N auruans a larger measure of par
ticipation in the administration of their island. In 
the course of that study, the functions of the Coun
cil of Chiefs would be examined, and the question 
of revising those functions would certainly be 
considered. 

).fr. SoLDATOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Re
publics) asked if the special representative could 
give examples showing the way in which the 
Council of Chiefs fulfilled its functions as an ad
visory body. 

Mr. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
Nauru) regretted that he had not the necessary 
papers with him to provide the details requested 
by the USSR representative. He would do his 
best to obtain the necessary information and to 
transmit it to the Council during the current 
sess10n. 

Mr. SoLDATOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Re
publics) asked for some clarification regarding 
question 28. In particular, he wished to know 
how the land was divided up among the indige
nous owners. 

Mr. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
Nauru) explained that, in accordance with the 
local custom, land was inherited through the 
mother's side of the family. There was no cada
stral survey. The boundaries dividing the land 
were marked by trees or stones. Those signs had 
disappeared or had been moved during the Japa
nese occupation and the Administration was in the 
process of helping the indigenous population to 
mark out the boundaries afresh. 

He thought it would be better to reply to the 
Soviet Union representative's last question during 
the consideration of the chapter on economic 
advancement. 

27 June 1949 

M. SoLDATov (Union des Republiques socialistes 
sovietiques) demande si les membres du Conseil 
des Chefs ont des droits et privileges a l'egard 
de la population de leur district; peuvent-ils 
notamment, percevoir certaines prestations: 
comme cela est le cas dans certaines iles du 
Pacifique et dans certaines parties de 1' Afrique? 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) declare que les Chefs n'ont aucun droit 
particulier et que leur seul privilege est celui de 
veiller aux interets de leurs concitoyens et de 
faire en sorte que leurs besoins soient signah~s 
au Conseil des Chefs. La population ne doit 
aucune espece de tribut aux membres du Conseil 
des Chefs. 

M. SoLDATOV (Union des Republiques socialistes 
sovietiques) cons tate dans Ia reponse a !a question 
14 que le Conseil des Chefs n'a re~u aucun droit 
de controle dans les domaines legislatif et budge
taire. Par ailleurs, l'Autorite chargee de !'admini
stration a donne !'assurance que la population 
autochtone recevra !a possibilite de participer a 
!'administration de l'ile. M. Soldatov aimerait 
qu'il soit precise si des assurances concretes ont 
ete donnees au Conseil des Chefs. 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) repond qu'aucun engagement n'a ete 
pris par l'Autorite chargee de !'administration. 
Il rappelle que la question d'une plus grande par
ticipation des N auruans a !'administration de leur 
ile fait !'objet d'une etude de Ia part du Gouverne
ment australien: au cours de cette etude, les fonc
tions du Conseil des Chefs seront examinees et 
leur revision sera certainement envisagee. 

M. SoLDATOV (Union des Republiques socialistes 
sovietiques) demande au representant special s'il 
pourrait donner des exemples illustrant la f~<;on 
dont le Conseil des Chefs remplit ses fonctwns 
d'organe consultatif. 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) regrette de ne pas avoir de docume~t 
lui permettant de fournir des details demandes 
par le representant de l'URSS. Il fer~ tout son 
possible pour obtenir tous les rense1gnen;ents 
necessaires, afin de les transmettre au Conse1l au 
cours de Ia session actuelle. 

M. SoLDATOV (Union des Republiques so~i~li.stes 
sovietiques) voudrait recevoir quel~ues J_Jrec!SJO?s 
relatives a la question 28. Il a!meralt savO!r, 
notamment, comment sont reparties les terres 
parmi les proprietaires autochtones. 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special
1 

po
1
ur 

Nauru) explique que, selon la coutume .oca e, 
la terre est leguee d'apres le systeme matnarcal. 
Il n'existe pas de registre du cadastre; les pro
prietes sont delimitees par des arb~e~ ~u d~s 
pierres; ces signes on~ disparu o? ont, ete d~~lace~ 
au cours de l'occupatwn Japona~se: 1 ~dm!~1s~ra 
tion aide actuellement les autochtones a dehmtter 
a nouveau les proprietes. 

M. Halligan pense qu'il sera prefer~ble de 
repondre a Ia derniere question du represent_ant 
de l'Union sovietique lors de l'examen du chap1tre 
relatif au progres economique. 



27 juin 1949 85 8eme seance 

Economic advancement 

).I_r. SOLDATOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Re
pu_b_hcs) asked for a _few particulars regarding the 
pn\ a!e company whtch, according to the reply to 
quesb_on 3 of part III (T /347), had sold the 
deposits of phosphate in Nauru to the Govern-

zments of the United Kingdom, Australia and New 
ealand. ' 

_ ).Ir. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
::\ auru) stated that it was the Pacific Phosphate 
Company, Ltd., incorporated in England. 

In 1&?8, the German Government granted to 
:he J almt. Gesellschaft the monopoly of working 
the depostts of phosphate located in the Protecto
r.:te of the Marshall Islands, subject to the rights 
ot the owners of the land in which such deposits 
;·.-er~ found. That monopoly was confirmed in 
190~ ~nd renewed for a period of 94 years, 
reckomng from 1 April 1906. It 1905 the Jaluit 
Gcscllsclzaft, with the approval of the German 
Go...-e~nm_ent, ceded its monopoly to exploit the 
depos1ts m Nauru, which was a part of the Pro
tectorate of the Marshall Islands, to the Pacific 
P~o;;pha_te Company, which began the work of 
mmm_g m 1906. In 1919 that company, in turn, 
transterred its interests in the deposits of phos
phate to the Governments of Australia the United 
Kingdom and New Zealand for tbe sum of 
i.-\3,500,000. 

).Ir. SOLDATOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Re
publics) asked if agreements had been concluded 
between the Pacific Phosphate Company and the 
owners of the land in which the deposits of phos
phate were located and, if so, what were the terms 
of such agreements. 

1Ir. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
X auru) stated that he did not have at hand the 
information requested. He would try to obtain it 
in Australia and would submit to the Council the 
data received. 

::..rr. SoLDATOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Re
publics) wished to know what was the system of 
taxation applicable to the British Phosphate Com
missioners and, in particular, what was the 
amount of taxes paid on the sum of £A527,014, 
which represented the value of phosphate 
exported in 1948, as indicated on page 76 of the 
anuua1 report. He would also like to know if the 
Commissioners used their capital to promote the 
welfare of the indigenous population. 

~Ir. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
Nauru) stated that the British Phosphate Com
missioners did not pay direct taxes. In addition 
to the customs duties and indirect taxes collected 
in accordance with the legislation in force in 
Nauru, only royalties were paid to the owners of 
the lands and to the Administration. The sums 
paid as royalties by the Commissioners amounted 
to a total of £Al,OOO per month, or £A12,000 per 
year. He would make available to the Council a 
copy of the accounts and balance sheet of the 
British Phosphate Commissioners for the fiscal 
year ending 30 June 1948. 

Mr. SoLDATOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Re
publics) then asked if taxes were paid to the 

Progres economique 

M. SoLDATOV (Union des Republiques socialistes 
sovietiques) demande quelques precisions au sujet 
de la societe privee qui, d'apres la reponse a la 
question 3 de la section III (T/347), a vendu les 
gisements de phosphates de Nauru aux Gouverne
ments du Royaume-Uni, de l'Australie et de la 
N ouvelle-Zelande. 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) declare qu'il s'agit de la Pacific Phosphate 
Company Ltd., constituee en Angleterre. 

En 1888, le Gouvernement allemand accorda a 
la Jaluit Gesellschaft le monopole de !'exploitation 
des gisements de phosphates se trouvant dans le 
Protectorat des iles Marshall, sous reserve des 
droits des proprietaires des terrains dans lesquels se 
trouvaient ces gisements. Ce monopole fut confirme 
en 1905 et renouvele pour une periode de 94 ans a 
compter du ler avril1906. En 1905, la Jaluit Gesell
schaft ceda, avec !'approbation du Gouvernement 
allemand, son monopole d'exploitation des gise
ments de Nauru, qui faisait partie du Protectorat 
des iles Marshall, ala Pacific Phosphate Company, 
qui commen<;a les travaux d'exploitation en 1906. 
Cette societe ceda a son tour, en 1919, ses interets 
dans les gisements de phosphates aux Gouverne
ments de l'Australie, du Royaume-Uni et de la 
N ouvelle-Zelande, pour la somme de 3.500.000 
livres australiennes. 

M. SoLDATOV (Union des Republiques socialistes 
sovietiques) demande si des accords sont inter
venus entre la Pacific Phosphate Company et les 
proprietaires des terrains dans lesquels se trou
vaient les gisements de phosphates et, dans 
!'affirmative, quelles en sont les conditions. 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) declare qu'il ne dispose pas des renseigne
ments demandes. II s'informera en Australie et 
soumettra ensuite au Conseil les elements qu'il 
aura obtenus. 

M. SoLDATOV (Union des Republiques socialistes 
sovietiques) voudrait sa voir quel est le systeme 
d'imposition applique aux British Phosphate Com
misszonners, et notamment quel est le montant des 
impots payes sur la somme de 527.014 livres 
australiennes, representant la valeur du phosphate 
exporte ainsi que l'indique le rapport annuel, 
page 76. II voudrait egalement savoir si ces 
C 011r1nissioners consacrent leurs capitaux au 
developpement du bien-etre de la population 
autochtone. 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) declare que les British Phosphate Com
missioners, ne paient pas d'impots directs: en 
dehors des droits de douane et des impots indirects 
per<;us conformement a Ia legislation en vigueur 
a Nauru, seules des redevances sont payees aux 
proprietaires des terrains et a 1' Administration. 
Les sommes payees a ce titre par les Commis
sioners s'elevent au total a 1.000 livres 
australiennes par mois, soit 12.000 livres 
australiennes par an. M. Halligan tient a la 
disposition du Conseil une copie des comptes et 
du bilan des British Phosphate Commissioners 
pour l'exercice expirant le 30 juin 1948. 

M. SoLDATOV (Union des Republiques socialistes 
sovietiques) demande alors si des impots sont 



8th meeting 86 27 June 1949 

Governments of Australia, New Zealand or the 
United Kingdom. 

?-.Ir. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
Nauru) replied that, in the case of Australia, no 
tax was collected. 

Mr. SoLDATOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Re
publics) asked the special representative if he 
could give him an itemized account of the sum of 
£AS27,014, which was the value of the phosphate 
exported in 1948. 

i-.Ir. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
Nauru) stated that he would furnish the informa
tion requested as soon as he obtained it from 
Australia. 

:.Ir. SoLDATOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Re
publics) asked for an explanation of the last sen
tence of the reply to question 12, in which it was 
stated that the N auruans themselves preferred 
that the landowners should receive the largest part 
of the royalty payments. He would like to know 
how that preference of the population had been 
expressed. 

Mr. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
X auru) replied that the Administrator had ascer
tained the wishes of the population in 1927, when 
he had carried on negotiations for the purpose of 
altering the rates of royalties paid by the British 
Phosphate Commissioners. At that time the Ad
ministrator had proposed that a more equitable 
system of distribution should replace the system 
under which only a small part of the population 
received royalties. That proposal had been re
jected, however, after a discussion in \vhich the 
Chiefs participated. The Administering Authority 
intended to urge the N auruans again to modify the 
system currently in effect. 

::.Ir. SoLDATOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Re
publics) remarked that the decision to retain the 
existing system must have been taken by the land
owners and not by the population itself. 

1\Ir. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
Nauru) explained that it was the Chiefs, and not 
the landowners, who had represented the N au
ruans at the time of the discussions on the Admin
istrator's proposal. The Chiefs had rejected that 
proposal, asserting that the landowners had al
ways seen to it that the rest of the population 
derived large benefits from the sums which they 
received as royalties. 

:Jfr. SoLDATOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Re
publics) asked if the members of the Council of 
Chiefs were landowners and, if so, what propor
tion of the island belonged to them. 

}fr. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
Nauru) stated that the cadastral registers were 
not complete, as a consequence of the destruc
tion caused during the war. The Administration 
was restoring them; the information requested 
by the USSR representative would be furnished to 
the Council as soon as it was possible to obtain it. 

payes aux Gouvernements de 1' Australie, de la 
Nouvelle-Zelande ou du Royaume-Uni. 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) repond que, en ce qui concerne 1' Australie, 
aucun impot n'est per<;u. 

M. SoLDATOV (Union des Republiques socialistes 
sovietiques) demande au representant special 
s'il peut lui indiquer le detail du montant de 
527.014 Iivres australiennes, representant !a valeur 
des phosphates exportes en 1948. 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) declare qu'il fournira les renseignements 
demandes des qu'il les aura obtenus d'Australie. 

M. SoLDATOV (Union des Republiques socialistes 
sovietiques) demande des explications au sujet 
de la derniere phrase de la reponse a la question 
12, dans laquelle il est indique que les Nauruans 
eux-memes preferent que les proprietaires fanciers 
re<;oivent la plus grande partie des redevances. 
I1 voudrait savoir de quelle fa<;on cette preference 
de la population s'est exprimee. 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) repond que l'Administrateur s'est assure 
des vceux de la population en 1927, losqu'il a 
mene des negociations en vue de modifier le taux 
des redevances payees par les British Phosphate 
Commissioners. A cette epoque, l'Administrateur 
avait propose de substituer un systeme de reparti
tion plus equitable au systeme suivant lequel 
seule une petite partie de Ia population recevait 
les redevances. Cette proposition fut cependant 
rejetee, apres une discussion a laquelle par
ticiperent les Chefs. L' Autorite chargee de !'ad
ministration se propose d'insister a nouveau aupres 
des N auruans afin que le systeme actuellement 
en vigueur soit modifie. 

M. SoLDATov (Union des Republiques socialistes 
sovietiques) fait remarquer que la decision _de 
conserver le regime en vigueur a du etre pnse 
par les proprietaires fanciers et non par Ia popu
lation elle-meme. 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) precise que ce sont les Chefs, et non les 
proprietaires fanciers, qui ont represen~e les 
N auruans lors des discussions qui ont eu lieu au 
sujet de la proposition de l' Administrateur. L~s 
Chefs ont rejete cette proposition en faisant valmr 
que les proprietaires ont toujour~ fait largement 
beneficier le reste de la populahon des sommes. 
qu'ils recevaient a titre de redevances. 

M. SoLDATOV (Union des Republiques socialiste.s. 
sovietiques) demande si les membres du Consetl 
des Chefs sont des proprietaires fanciers et, dans 
!'affirmative, quelle proportion de l'ile leur appar
tient. 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) declare que les registres du cadastre sont 
incomplets, a cause des destructions effectuees. 
pendant la guerre. L' Administration est en train 
de les reconstituer: les renseignements demandes. 

I 
par le representant de l'URSS seront fou~nis au. 
Conseil des qu'il sera possible de les obtemr. 



27 juin 1949 87 

).I.r. SoLDATOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Re
pu_?hc:s) asked if the special representative had the 
mtormation for 1940 and 1941. 

~ ~Ir. HAL_LIGAN (Special representative for 
~auru) rephed that the report on the administra
ti?n of Nau~u ~or ~he year 1941 contained, on page 
b: a table mdtcatmg the amount of the royalties 
patd to the Nauruans for the mining of phosphates. 
That table showed that 211 Nauruans had received 
such royalties: 176 of them had collected a total 
oi fA4,500 and thirty-five had collected £Al1,600. 
Although that table did not show the exact dis
tribution of the lands, the conclusion could be 
drawn that the lands were not evenly distributed 
among the population. 

).lr. SoLDATOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Re
publics) noted from the reply to question 15 that 
the Council of Chiefs had requested that the 
:oyalty for the mining of phosphates should be 
mcreased to the sum of one shilling and tenpence 
halipenny per ton, and that the sum of one shil
l~ng and a penny had been agreed upon. He would 
hke to know if the indigenous population of Nauru 
had the opportunity to make an agreement with 
another company which might offer them more 
advantageous terms. 

).fr. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
::\auru) replied that the British Phosphate Com
missioners had the monopoly of phosphate de
posits in Nauru. In such circumstances, the popu
lation could not conclude such an agreement as 
that mentioned by the Soviet Union representa
tive. 

).Ir. SoLDATOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Re
publics) said that it was stated in the annual 
report (page 25) that the British Phosphate Com
missioners had agreed to advance to the Adminis
tration a sum up to £A200,000 to meet the ex
penses involved in the reconstruction of the island. 
Mr. Soldatov wished to know for what expenses 
that sum would be used. Was it for the recon
struction of the administrative buildings and 
quarters intended for the Europeans, which had 
been destroyed by the Japanese, as well as for the 
purchase of machinery? 

Mr. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
Nauru) replied that the itemized account of ex
penses of the Administration appeared in appen
dix IV of the report (pages 71 to 73). 

He pointed out that the sum of £A200,000 
which the British Phosphate Commissioners had 
agreed to advance to the Administration would 
be used to make up the deficit in the finances of 
the Territory for the period from 1 January 1942 
to 30 June 1950. It was thought that after that 
period the revenue of Nauru would be sufficient 
to meet expenses. 

Mr. NORIEGA (Mexico) asked if article 10 of 
the Agreement of 1919 was still in force. 

Mr. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
Nauru) replied in the affirmative. 

Mr. NoRIEGA (Mexico) then remarked that, 
contrary to the opinion of the Administering 

8eme seance 

M. SoLDATOV (Union des Republiques socialistes 
sovietiques) demande si le representant special 
ne possede pas les renseignements relatifs a 1940 
et 1941. 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) rappelle que le rapport sur !'administration 
de Nauru pour l'annee 1941 contient, a la page 
13, un tableau indiquant le montant des redevances 
payees aux Nauruans du fait de !'extraction des 
phosphates. II resulte de ce tableau que 211 
N auruans ont re<;u de telles redevances: 176 
d'entre eux ont encaisse un total de 4.500 livres 
australiennes et 35 ont encaisse 11.600 livres 
australiennes. Bien que ce tableau n'indique pas 
la distribution exacte des terres, l'on peut en tirer 
la conclusion que celles-ci ne sont pas n!guliere
ment reparties parmi la population. 

M. SoLDATOV (Union des Republiques socialistes 
sovietiques) constate, d'apres !a reponse a !a 
question 15, que le Conseil des Chefs avait 
demande que la redevance pour !'extraction des 
phosphates fUt portee a un shilling, dix pence 
et derpi par tonne et que !'accord s'est fait sur 
le chiffre de un shilling et un penny. II voudrait 
savoir si !a population autochtone de Nauru a la 
possibilite de conclure un accord avec tine autre 
societe qui pourrait lui offrir des conditions plus 
a vantageuses. 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) repond que les British Phosphate Com
missioners ant le monopole des gisements de 
phosphate de Nauru. Dans ces conditions, la 
population ne peut pas conclure d'accord du genre 
de celui que mentionne le representant de l'Union 
sovietique. 

M. SoLDATov (Union des Republiques socialistes 
sovietiques) declare qu'il est indique au rapport 
annuel (page 25) que les British Phosphate 
Commissioners ont consenti a avancer a 1' Ad
ministration des fonds, a concurrence de 200.000 
livres australiennes, pour faire face aux depenses 
necessitees par la reconstruction dans l'ile. M. 
Soldatov voudrait savoir a quelles depenses ces 
fonds seront consacres. S'agit-il de la reconstruc
tion des batiments administratifs et des locaux 
destines aux Europeens, qui ont ete detruits par 
les Japonais, ainsi que de l'achat de machines? 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) repond que le detail des depenses de 
1' Administration figure a l'appendice IV au rap-
port (pages 71 a 73). . 

II precise que la somme de 200.000 hvres 
australiennes que les British Phosphate Com
missioners ont consenti a avancer a 1' Administra
tion servira a combler le deficit des finances du 
Territoire pour la periode allant du ler janvier 
1942 au 30 juin 1950. L'on pense qu'a partir 
de cette date, les revenus de Nauru suffiront pour 
faire face aux depenses. 

M. NoRIEGA (Mexique) demande si !'article 
10 de !'Accord de 1919 est toujours en vigueur. 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) repond par !'affirmative. 

M. NoRIEGA (Mexique) fait alors remarquer 
que, contrairement a 1' opinion de 1' Autorite 



8th meeting 88 

Authority expressed in the reply to question 4, 
that article \vas inconsistent with the provisions 
of Article 76 d of the Charter. Article 10 of the 
Agreement of 1919 established a real monopoly 
from which the United Kingdom, Austrailia, and 
:::\ ew Zealand \vould benefit ; yet one of the basic 
objectives of the Trusteeship System was to en
sure equal treatment in the social, economic and 
commercial matters for all f-Iembers of the United 
Xations and their nationals. 

::\Ir. HooD (Australia) called attention to the 
fact that the Agreement of 1919 must be con
sidered in the light of Article 80 of the Charter, 
in accordance \vith which no provision of Chapter 
XII was to be construed to alter, directly or in
directly, in any manner, the rights whatsoever of 
any States or any peoples or the terms of existing 
international instruments to which Members of 
the United :::\ations might respectively be parties. 
The situation had been perfectly clear at the time 
when the General Assembly approved the Trus
teeship Agreement for l\auru by the adoption of 
resolution 140 (II); no one had questioned the 
validity of the Agreement of 1919. 

l\lr. I ~GLJ':s (Philippines) pointed out that, ac
cording to Article 103 of the Charter, the obliga
tions assumed by the ::\!embers of the United Na
tions under the Charter should prevail over their 
obligations under any other international agree
ment in the event of a conflict between obligations. 

He noted, moreover, that under the lVIandate 
System the Territory of Nauru had been placed 
in class C, which did not provide for equal treat
ment in economic matters of States Members of 
the League of ~ ations or their nationals, whereas 
Article 76 d of the Charter did provide for such 
equality, as the representative of Mexico had em
phasized. 

:\Ir. Ingles then asked the special representative 
why royalties on the production of_ phosphate had 
increased by only 50 per cent while the value of 
phosphate had risen since 1940 from thirteen shil
lings to forty shillings a ton. 

::\lr. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
X aura) stated that the figures quoted by the rep
resentative of the Philippines represented the cost 
of production of one ton of phosphate on the 
island. The royalty was in no way related to the 
cost price; it did not vary in the same proportion. 
According to the agreement of 1947, however, the 
royalty should not be reduced beyond a given 
figure, even if the cost price should be as low as 
twelve shillings per ton. 

Replying to a question by Mr. INGLES (Philip
pines) concerning the difference between the cost 
price of phosphate and its market price, Mr. HAL
LIGAN (Special representative for Nauru) stated 
that the reasons for that difference were given in 
the latter part of the reply to question 16. 

J\lr. INGLES (Philippines) said that it was 
stated on page 24 of the report that the two funds 
set up from the royalties paid on the mining of 
phosphate would exceed £A3,000,000. He would 
like to know how those funds were invested and 
at what rate of interest. 

27 June 1949 

chargee de !'administration, exprimee dans Ia 
reponse a Ia question 4, cet article est incom
patible avec les dispositions de l'alinea d de 
l' Article 76 de la Charte. En e:ftet, !'article 10 
de !'Accord de 1919 etablit un veritable monopole 
au profit du Royaume-Uni, de l'Australie et de 
la Nouve11e-Zelande, alors que l'une des fins 
essentielles du Regime de tutelle consiste a assurer 
l'egalite de traitement dans le domaine social 
economique et commercial a tous les Membres d~ 
!'Organisation des Nations Unies et a leurs 
ressortissants. 

M. HooD (Australie) attire !'attention sur le 
fait qu'il convient d'examiner !'Accord de 1919 a 
Ia lumiere de 1' Article 80 de la Charte, aux termes 
duquel aucune disposition du Chapitre XII ne 
sera interpretee comme modifiant directement ou 
indirectement, en aucune maniere, les droits quel
conques d'un Etat ou d'un peuple ou les disposi
tions d'actes internationaux en vigueur, auxquels 
les Membres de !'Organisation peuvent etre 
parties. La situation etait parfaitement claire au 
moment oit 1' Assemblee generale a, par sa resolu
tion 140 (II), approuve 1' Accord de tutelle con
cernant Nauru et nul n'a mis en doute Ia validite 
de !'Accord de 1919. 

M. INGLES (Philippines) fait remarquer qu'aux 
termes de 1' Article 103 de la Charte, les obliga
tions assumees par les Membres des Nations 
Unies en vertu de la Charte prevalent sur leurs 
obligations en vertu de tout autre accord inter
national, lorsqu'il y a confiit entre ces obligations. 

II signale en outre que, sous Ie systeme des 
mandats, Nauru etait place dans la categoric C, 
qui ne prevoyait pas l'egalite de traitement dans 
le domaine economique pour les Etats Membres 
de la Societe des Nations et leurs ressortissants, 
tandis que, ainsi que le representant du Mexique 
l'a souligne, l'alinea d de 1' Article 76 de Ia Charte 
prevoit cette egalite. 

M. Ingles demande ensuite au representant 
special la raison pour laquelle la redevance pour 
!'exploitation des phosphates n'a augmente que 
de 50 pour 100, alors que la valeur d'une tonne 
de phosphate a passe, depuis 1940, de trrize 
shillings a quarante shillings. 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) declare que les chiffres cites par le 
representant des Philippines representent le prix 
de revient d'une tonne de phosphate dans l'ile. 
La redevance n'est nullement liee au prix de 
revient: elle ne varie pas dans les memes propor
tions. Cependant, aux termes de !'accord intervenu 
en 1947, la redevance ne peut etre inferieure a un 
chiffre donne, meme si le prix de revient ne 
depasse pas douze shillings par tonne. 

M. INGLES (Philippines) ayant demande quelle 
est la difference entre le prix du phosphate sur le 
marche et son prix de revient, M. HALLIGAN 
(Representant special pour Nauru) repond que 
1' explication de cette difference est donnee dans 
la derniere partie de Ia reponse a la question 16. 

M. INGLES (Philippines) declare qu'il est 
indique, a la page 24 du rapport, que les deux 
fonds constitues au moyen des redevances payees 
pour !'exploitation des phosphates depasseront la 
somme de 3 millions de livres australiennes. 11 
voudrait savoir de queUe fa<;on ces fonds sont 
investis et a quel taux d'interet ils sont places. 



27 juin 1949 89 

~ :\I r. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
;' auru) explained that the funds were invested 
1fl Commonwealth of Australia Government 
B_?~ds \Yhich yielded interest at the average rate 
·01 -'-1 ~ per cent. 

, :\Ir. GRE~N (United States of America) stated 
~l:at accordmg to appendix VI of the report (page 
1 0 ) all ph<;>sphate mined on N aunt was exported 
to .-\.ustraha and New Zealand. He wished to 
know whether those exports went directly to the 
GoYernments of Australia and New Zealand or 
1o con1n1ercial enterprises in those two count;ies. 

~ ::.rr. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
~aunt) replied that the phosphate was not sent 
<:1rectly to governments. The exports were han
ded by the British Phosphate Commissioners a 
:msiness enterprise which sold phosphate to co~
ranies and persons manufacturing superphos
rhates for farmers. 

_ ::.~r. C\£hs (Costa Rica) asked whether any 
:ore1gn company which set up in business in Aus
:ralia. ::-\ ew Zealand or the United Kingdom 
v;oulcl have the right to obtain phosphate, or 
• . ..-llether that was a monopoly reserved for Aus
cralian, New Zealand and United Kingdom firms. 

::.rr. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
~ auru) replied that any company, whether for
eign or otherwise, which set up in business in 
.-\ustralia had to be registered and incorporated 
under Australian law; once incorporated, it could 
operate on the same basis as any other firm in 
the country. 

::.rr. NORIEGA (Mexico) noted that according 
to the reply to question 1 of part III (T /347), 
the ?-Jauruan Royalty Trust Fund was the only 
fund in the administration of which the indigenous 
inhabitants had any voice. He would like to know 
whether any effective control was exercised by the 
indigenous population, and if so, who exercised it. 

::.rr. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
Xauru) stated that the Nauruan Royalty Trust 
Fund \vas assigned to expenditures incurred in the 
exclusive interests of the N auruans, particularly 
in the fields of education and public health. It was 
not the only fund from which the Nauruans bene
fited, but it was the only one used exclusively 
for them. The Council of Chiefs was consulted 
by the Administration whenever the amounts to 
be spent in certain fields had to be determined 
and, although the funds were held by the Admin
istration and authorization to spend them was 
granted by the latter, the Nauruans had a voice 
in the management of the Fund in the sense that 
greater consideration was given to their wishes 
than when expenditures were made from other 
Administration funds. 

1Ir. NORIEGA (Mexico) concluded that the 
X auruans actually had no control over economic 
questions. 

Mr. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
Nauru) agreed that the Nauruans had no direct 
control in the financial matters of the Territory. 

8eme seance 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) precise que ces fonds sont investis en 
Commonwealth of Australia Government Bonds, 
qui produisent un interet au taux moyen de 
3 1/4 pour 100. 

M. GREEN (Etats-Unis d'Amerique) declare 
qu'il resulte de l'appendice VI au rapport (page 
76) que les phosphates extraits de Nauru ont ete 
exportes en totalite en Australie et en Nouvelle
Zelande. I1 voudrait savoir si ces exportations 
ont ete faites directement aux Gouvernements 
de 1' Australie et de la N ouvelle-Zelande ou a des 
societes commerciales etablies dans ces deux pays. 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) repond que les phosphates ne sont pas 
adresses directement aux gouvernements. Les 
exportations sont faites par les British Phosphate 
Commissioners, entreprise commerciale qui vend 
les phosphates aux societes et aux personnes qui 
fabriquent les superphosphates pour !'agriculture. 

M. CANAS (Costa-Rica) demande si une societe 
etrangere qui s'etablirait en Australie, en Nouvelle
Zelande ou au Royaume-Uni, aurait le droit 
d'obtenir des phosphates ou si le monopole est 
reserve aux compagnies australiennes, neo
zelandaises ou britanniques. 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) repond que toute societe, etrangere ou 
non, qui s'etablirait en Australie, devrait etre 
constituee conformement aux lois australiennes; 
une fois constituee, elle pourrait fonctionner de 
la meme fa<;on que toute autre societe etablie dans 
ce pays. 

M. NoRIEGA (Mexique) constate, d'apres la 
reponse a Ia question 1 de la section III (T/347), 
que les seuls fonds sur lesquels les N auruans 
aient un droit de regard direct sont ceux du 
Nauruan Royalty Trust Fund. Il voudrait savoir 
s'il s'agit la d'un controle effectif exerce par Ia 
population autochtone et, dans !'affirmative, qui 
exerce ce controle. 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) declare que le N auruan Royalty Trust 
Fund est consacre aux depenses faites dans 
!'interet exclusif des Nauruans, notamment dans 
le domaine de !'instruction et dans celui de la 
sante publique. Ce fonds n'est pas le seul dont 
les Nauruans tirent profit, mais c'est celui qui 
leur est exclusivement consacre. Le Conseil des 
Chefs est consulte par !'Administration lorsqu'il 
s'agit d'etablir les sommes a depenser dans des 
domaines determines et, quoique les fonds soient 
detenus par 1' Administration et que l'autorisation 
de les depenser soit donnee par cette derniere, 
les N auruans ont un droit de regard sur ces 
fonds, en ce sens que l'on tient un plus large 
compte de leurs desirs que lorsqu'il s'agit de 
depenser d'autres fonds de !'Administration. 

M. NoRIEGA (Mexique) en conclut qu'en fait, 
les Nauruans n'exercent aucun contr6le sur les 
questions de nature economique. 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) reconnait que les Nauruans n'exercent 
pas de controle direct sur les finances du territoire. 



8th meeting 90 

Social advancement 

Mr. KHALIDY (Iraq) drew the Council's at
tention to the reply to question 1 in part IV ( T /-
347) and asked precisely what effect the con
struction of European type houses might have 
on the life of the N auruans. Moreover, the 200 
Europeans and 1,300 Chinese employed by the 
British Phosphate Commissioners were said to be 
decently housed. 

Since it was claimed that the prosperity of the 
indigenous population largely depended on the 
phosphate industry, might it not be expected that 
the Administering Authority would supply the 
needs of the indigenous inhabitants with regard to 
food and essential articles, until the phosphate in
dustry was again in full operation? 

11r. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
Nauru) explained that the Administration had 
not yet been able to obtain the necessary materials 
for the construction of the houses in question and 
that, in the meantime, temporary dwellings had 
been built from surplus war material on the spot. 
The number of houses envisaged was 250 and 
it was reckoned that they would be built at the 
rate of two houses a week. That such a step 
would improve the standard of living of the 
indigenous population was naturally only a hy
pothesis, but it was one which seemed very plausi
ble and logical. 

He further explained that since returning to the 
island, the Administration had devoted its atten
tion to supplying the indigenous population with 
food and had provided for all their needs, particu
larly with regard to the 600 Nauruans who had 
been repatriated from Truk. 

?-.lr. KnALIDY (Iraq) wondered whether it was 
to be deduced from question 30 and the reply to 
that question that the N auruan inhabitants em
ployed by the Administration deserved no more 
than the rather low wages paid to them, and 
whether, taking ability into account, the principle 
of equal pay for equal \vork was applied. 

:r.Ir. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
Nauru) replied that the wage rate for Nauruans 
was fixed according to the \VOrk done, the circum
stances prevailing on the island, and above all ac
cording to the real abilities of the persons con
cerned, rather than to the titles of the positions 
they held. 

Mr. KHALIDY (Iraq) observed that it might be 
concluded from the replies to questions 17, 20 and 
21 that the indigenous population was apparently 
at a disadvantage in two respects as compared 
with persons employed by the British Phosphate 
Commissioners; it was proposed that they should. 
be asked to pay a rent of fA12 a year to occupy 
the new houses being built, and that their own 
houses which had been destroyed as a result of the 
war should not be replaced even as compensation 
for war damage. 

He asked why in those circumstances it had 
been decided to charge a rent of fA12 and what 
proportion of the average wage of the indigenous 
population such a rent represented. Would the 
Administering Authority be ready to replace Nau
ruan houses destroyed during the war free of 
charge as compensation for damage, or as com-

27 June 1949 

Progres social 

M. KHALIDY ( Irak) appelle !'attention du 
Conseil sur la n§ponse a la question 1 de la section 
IV (T/347), et demande quels effets precis 
pourrait avoir la construction de maisons de type 
europeen sur Ia vie des Nauruans. Par ailleurs 
il est dit que les 200 Europeens et les 1.300 
Chinois employes par les British Phosphate 
Commissioners sont convenablement loges. 

Puisque l'on pretend que !a prosperite de !a 
population autochtone depend, en grande partie, 
de I'industrie des phosphates, ne pourrait-on 
s'attendre a ce que I'Autorite chargee de !'ad
ministration pourvoie aux besoins de ces autoch
tones en ce qui concerne !'alimentation et les 
produits de premiere necessite, jusqu'a ce que 
Ia dite industrie ait retrouve sa pleine activite? 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) precise que !'Administration n'a pas encore 
pu se procurer Ies materiaux necessaires a !a 
construction des habitations en question et que, 
en attendant, des Iogements ont ete provisoirement 
construits avec les surplus de material militaire 
qui se trouvent sur les lieux. M. Halligan indique 
que le nombre des habitations envisagees s'eleve 
a 250 et que !'on compte Ies construire au rythme 
de deux maisons par semaine. Quant aux heureux 
effets d'une telle mesure sur la vie des autochtones, 
ce n'est, naturellement, qu'une hypothese qui, 
toutefois, semble fort plausible et logique. 

Le representant special explique, d'autre part, 
que !'Administration s'est occupee, des son retour 
dans I'ile, du ravitaillement des autochtones 
en denrees alimentaires et a pourvu a tous leurs 
besoins, en ce qui concerne notamment les 600 
Nauruans qui ont ete rapatries de Truk. 

M. KHALIDY (Irak) demande si, d'ap~es !a 
question 30 et la repat;se qui s'y rapporte, tl fa~t 
entendre que les habttants de Nauru employes 
dans 1' Administration ne meritent pas plus q)le les 
salaires peu eleves qui leur son.t payes, et ~i, ~ompte 
tenu des aptitudes, on apphque le pnnc1pe de 
l'egalite de salaire a travail egal. 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant speci~l pour 
Nauru) repond que le taux des sala1res .des 
N auruans est fixe compte tenu de la fonctwn, 
des circonstances qui prevalent dans l'ile, <;t 
surtout des capacites reelles des interesses, plutot 
que de leurs titres. 

M. KHALIDY (Irak) fait observer que les 
reponses aux questions 17, 20 et 21 permettent 
de conclure que les autochtones sont apparemment 
desavantages a deux egards par rapport aux per
sonnes employees par les Bri~is~ Pho;.Phate Com
missioners · en effet on prev01t qu 11 leur sera 
demande 'de paye; un !oyer, de 1? livres 
australiennes par an pour I occupatwn. des 
nouvelles habitations en cours de construction et 
que leurs propres maisons, ~ans Ie cas ott elles 
auraient ete detruites par smte de la guerre, ne 
seront pas remplacees, meme a titre de com
pensation pour dommages de guerre. . 

Le representant de l'Irak demande pourqum, 
dans ces conditions, il a ete decide d'exiger le 
paiement d'un !oyer de 12 livres, et quelle propor
tion du salaire moyen des autochto~es u~ !el Io:~rer 
represent e. I:' Aut?rite charg~e de I a~mmtstratwn 
serait-elle d1sposee, par a1lleurs, a ret;Ipla.cer 
gratuitement Ies habitations de Nauruans detrmtes 



27 juin 1949 91 

pensa~ion for t~e losses and suffering endured by 
the .:-\auruans m the course of hostilities? 

. ::.rr. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
);auru) ex~lained that the houses being built were 
to be provtcled for all the inhabitants whether 
or not they ,~-e~e employed by the Brit'ish Phos
phate Commtsswners, and consequently it was 
r.atural to charge a rent. In certain cases, of 
C?t:rse, employment contracts might make pro
Ylston for free housing, but there was no reason 
why such a measure should apply to the whole 
population. \Vith regard to the amount of the rent 
th 0 f ' .. e rep_resentabve o Iraq could discover what 
propor~10n of the average wage it represented by 
consultmg the report on the Territory which gave 
tl1e relevant figures. 

\\'it_h regard to the question of compensation, 
he po_mted out that it was often very difficult to 
es_tabhs}:l t_he real value of the primitive housing 
?i the mdtgenous population for purposes of pay
mg war damage compensation; however, when
eYer such an estimate was possible- for ex
ample, when the person concerned owned a Eu
ropean type house- it would be borne in mind 
in fixing the amount of war damage in general, 
and if it \vas considered that replacement of the 
house v,·as not sufficient compensation, a supple
mentary cash payment would be made. 

::.rr. CA~As (Costa Rica) drew the Council's at
tention to question 26 of part IV (T/347) and to 
paragraph 147 of the Administering Authority's 
report. He would like to know how the provisions 
of the ordinance regulating the movement of the 
indigenous population ensured proper behaviour 
and a decent way of life among the inhabitants of 
the island. He considered, on the contrary, that, 
in accordance with the principles of the Trustee
ship System, the advancement of the inhabitants 
would be better encouraged if they were allowed 
freedom of movement. He asked the special rep
resentative to give him further details with regard 
to those regulations. 

1Ir. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
l'\ aura) replied by reading the provisions of the 
)Iovement of Natives Ordinance of 1921-22. That 
Ordinance stated that N auruans were obliged to 
remain in their respective districts between sun
set and sunrise, as a general rule; however, pro
vision was made for a certain number of excep
tions for the benefit of members of the indigenous 
population who were employed in the service of 
persons residing in the European colonies, who 
worked by night, who wished to attend some pe~
formance or other, or who were obliged by therr 
employment to go through districts other than 
their own during the curfew hours, as in the case 
of fishermen, for example. Persons benefiting from 
those exceptions must carry a laissez-passer 
signed by their employer, the Administrator, or 
any other competent authority. Mr. Halligan ex
plained that those provisions had been enacted so 
as not to leave the inhabitants free to wander 
~bout the Territory without supervision and were 
m the interest of the indigenous population. He 

Berne seance 

pendant la guerre, a titre de reparations pour 
dommages subis, ou de compensation pour les 
pertes ou les souffrances endurees par les 
Nauruans au cours des hostilites? 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) explique que les habitations en cours de 
construction sont prevues pour tous les habitants, 
qu'ils soient ou non employes par les British 
Phosphate Commissioners) et qu'il est normal, 
par consequent, qu'un layer soit exige. I1 est 
certain que, dans certains cas, les contrats de 
travail peuvent prevoir la fourniture d'un loge
ment a titre gratuit, mais il n'y a pas de raison 
pour qu'une telle mesure s'applique a l'ensemble 
de la population. En ce qui concerne le layer 
proprement dit, le representant de l'Irak pourra 
se rendre compte de la proportion du salaire 
moyen qu'il represente en se rapportant au rap
port relatif au Territoire, qui donne les chiffres 
correspondants. 

En ce qui concerne la question des reparations, 
le reQ_resentant special fait remarquer qu'il est 
souvent tres difficile de determiner la valeur reelle 
des habitations primitives des autochtones, aux 
fins de paiement d'une indemnite pour dommages 
de guerre; chaque fois, neanmoins, qu'une telle 
evaluation sera possible - notamment lorsque 
!'interesse possedait une maison de type euro
peen -, il en sera tenu compte dans la fixation 
du montant des clommages de guerre en general, 
et, si l'on estime que le remplacement de la 
maison ne suffit pas comme reparation, il sera 
accorde une indemnite complementaire en especes. 

M. CANAS (Costa-Rica) appelle !'attention du 
Conseil sur la question 26 de Ia section IV 
(T /347), ainsi que sur le paragraphe 147 du 
rapport presente par l' Autorite chargee de !'ad
ministration. Le representant du Costa-Rica 
aimerait savoir en quoi les dispositions de 
!'ordonnance reglementant le mouvement des 
autochtones assurent un mode de vie et un com
portement convenables parmi les habitants de 
l'ile; M. Canas considere, au contraire, que con
formement aux principes clu Regime de tutelle, 
on favoriserait davantage les progres des habitants 
en leur permettant de se deplacer librement. Il 
prie le representant special de bien vouloir lui 
donner des precisions sur cette ordonnance. 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) reponcl en donnant lecture des disposi
tions de Ia Movement of Natives Ordinance de 
1921-1922; cette ordonnance prevoit que les 
N auruans sont tenus de demeurer dans leurs 
districts respectifs entre le coucher et le lever du 
soleil, en regle generale ; toutefois, un certain 
nombre d'exceptions sont prevues au benefice des 
autochtones qui sont employes au service de per
sonnes residant dans la colonie europeenne, qui 
travaillent de nuit, qui se rendent a un spectacle 
quelconque, ou qui sont obliges de traverser 
d'autres districts que le leur pendant les heures 
d'interdiction, par suite des necessites de leur 
profession, comme les pecheurs, par exemple. Les 
beneficiaires de ces exceptions doivent etre por
teurs d'un laissez-passer signe de leur employeur, 
de l'Administrateur, ou d'une autre autorite com
petente. Le representant special precise que de 
telles dispositions ont ete prises afin de ne pas 
laisser aux habitants le loisir d'errer sur le Ter
ritoire sans surveillance, mesure qui est clans 



8th meeting 92 27 June 1949 

added t?at although t~e provisions might seem 
very stnct and severe, m practice they were very 
liberally applied. 

11:. RYCK~IANS (B.elgium) observed, in order 
to gtve the Costa R1can representative an ex
ample, th~t in the island of Samoa, long before 
the establishment of the European administration 
there had been a native custom which prohibited 
all young \Vomen from leaving their homes in the 
evening and placed them in the care of the village 
pastor; that measure had been considered useful in 
the interest of the population and of public moral
ity. He thought it was necessary to dwell on the 
conditions which must exist or the situations 
which might arise, in an island like Nauru where 
there was a large foreign population chiefly com
posed of single men. 

Mr. CANAS ( Co?ta Rica) thought, for his part, 
that such regulatwns were worthy only of a 
prison. Since it appeared that it was chiefly the 
security of women which was involved, why were 
European women not subject to the same regula
tions as the indigenous women? He referred to 
Article 76 c of the Charter and asked why the 
:est:ictions in question also applied to the Chinese, 
m ~1ew of the fact that they came from a country 
wh1ch was a member of the Security Council and 
they could hardly be called primitive peoples. 

l\Ir. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
Nauru) replied that the law was so and that it 
applied to Chinese as well as Nauruans. 

Mr. NoRIEGA (l\Iexico) was convinced that the 
question was not as serious as might be imagined. 
The Ordinance was one which had been promul
gated more than twenty-eight years previously and 
which had remained in force simply as a result of 
the negligence characteristic of bureaucracy. Cer
tainly it should not be taken literally, since it was 
most unlikely that it was applied with all the 
strictness to which it might give rise. 

He thought that the Trusteeship Council's best 
course would he to draw the Administering Au
thority's attention to the Universal Declaration of 
Human Rights and to invite it to rescind a pro
vision containing measures of discrimination in
compatible with that Declaration. 

Mr. HooD (Australia) paid a tribute to the 
common sense of the Mexican representative and 
agreed that the question should be looked at from 
a practical and not a theoretical point of view. He 
did not know whether current conditions were the 
same as they had been twenty years previously, 
but he was sure that the Administration must have 
good reasons for imposing certain disciplinary 
measures on a community which was as excep
tional in its composition as in its isolation, and 
that such measures could only be in the interest 
of the population as a whole. The ordinance in 
question could not be interpreted as evidence of 
discrimination, as was proved by the fact that the 

!'interet meme de la population indigene. M. 
Halligan ajoute que ces dispositions peuvent 
paraitre tres strictes et tres severes, mais que, dans 
la patique, elles sont appliquees d'une maniere 
tres liberate. 

M. RYCKMANS (Belgique) signale, afm de 
donner une indication au representant du Costa
Rica, que dans l'ile de Samoa, bien avant !'ins
titution de !'administration europeenne, il existait 
une coutume indigene qui interdisait a toutes les 
filles de sortir le soir et les confiait a la garde du 
pasteur du village; cette mesure etait consideree 
comme utile dans l'interet de la population et de 
la moralite publique. Le representant de la Bel
gique estime qu'il n'est pas necessaire d'insister 
sur les conditions qui doivent exister, ou sur les 
situations qui risquent de survenir, dans une ile 
comme Nauru ou il existe une nombreuse popu
lation etrangere composee, en grande majorite, 
d'hommes celibataires. 

M. CANAS (Costa-Rica) considere, pour sa part, 
qu'un tel reglement est digne d'une prison. 
Puisqu'il semble qu'il s'agit plus particulierement 
de la securite des femmes, pourquoi ne pas sou
mettre les femmes europeennes au meme regime 
que les femmes indigenes? Le representant du 
Costa-Rica fait allusion, d'autre part, a l'alinea 
c de !'Article 76 de la Charte et demande pourquoi 
les restrictions en question s'appliquent egalement . 
aux Chinois, alors que ces derniers sont originaires 
d'un pays membre du Conseil de securite et ne 
sauraient etre qualifies de primitifs. 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) repond que la loi est ainsi faite et qu' elle 
s'applique aux Chinois aussi bien qu'aux 
Nauruans. 

M. NoRIEGA (Mexique) declare etre convaincu 
que la question n'a pas la gravite que l'on pourrait 
croire; il s'agit, en effet, d'une ordonnance qui a 
ete promulguee il y a plus de vingt-huit ans et 
qui a ete maintenue en vigueur tout simplement du 
fait de la nonchalance qui est d'usage dans la 
bureaucratie; il ne faut certainement pas la prendre 
au pied de la lettre, car il est fort probable qu'elle 
n'est pas appliquee avec toute la rigueur a laquelle 
elle pourrait donner lieu. 

Le representant du Mexique estime que le 
meilleur message de la part du Conseil de tutelle 
consisterait a appeler !'attention de 1' Autorite 
chargee de !'administration sur la Declaration 
universelle des droits de l'homme, en l'invitant a 
abroger de telles dispositions qui contiennent des 
mesures discriminatoires incompatibles avec cette 
Declaration. 

M. HooD ( Australie) rend hommage au bon 
sens du representant du Mexique et pense qu'il 
faut effectivement considerer la question d'un 
point de vue pratique et non pas theorique: . Le 
representant de 1' Australie ignore si les condttlons 
sont les memes a l'heure actuelle qu'il y a vingt 
ans mais il reste convaincu que !'Administration 
doit avoir de bonnes raisons pour imposer une 
certaine discipline a une communaute assez excep
tionnelle de par sa composition et son etat d'isol~
ment, et qu'une telle mesure ne p_eut que serv1r 
!'interet de la population tout ent1ere. L'ordon
nance en question ne sa':rait e~re . in_terpr_etee 
comme temoignant de prat1ques d1scnmmat01res, 



;zs juin 1949 93 9eme seance 

ontr t · d c. ac s s1gne by the Chinese expressly pro-
,.\d.:d that the sig?atory undertook to respect the 
Ia ' ::. and regulatwns in force at the time of 
signature. 

:_Re~_lying to several questions ?Y Mr. NoRIEGA 
{- _1e..-..;:_1co), Mr. _HALLIGAN ( Spec1al representative 
to, ).:; auru) satd that the population had never 
rna~e a_ny attempt to establish a trade union or
pmz:::tiOn. All questions connected with the fix
mg o_r _wage_ rates were considered jointly by the 
Adm1mstrat1on and the Council of Chiefs. The 
¥ea~ <;=hie£ received a salary as an official of the 
:•d~·n_Imstration, but it was in his capacity as a 
C:.H~t that he discussed wage questions; he thus 
ret<~y:ed complete independence of judgment and 
CeciSIOn. 

The ~asic wage was the same for married and 
t::lmarned employees but there were family and 
c:her allowances which were added to the basic 
·.·,-age according to the matrimonial status or the 
~urn ber of children of the person concerned. 
-
11oreover, education, medical care and public 

1-:eal th services were all free of charge. 

:--rr. Lm (China) drew the Trusteeship Coun
cil's attention to the reply to question 19, and 
c.~ked whether there was anv discrimination against 
:he Chinese with regard to housing. 

:..rr. HALLIGAN (Special representative for 
Xauru) explained that the indigenous inhabitants 
attached a great deal of importance to private 
property and built their houses on lands which be
longed to them. The Chiefs had, however, recog
nized that it would be advantageous to build 
houses in groups and the indigenous inhabitants 
had made arrangements among themselves so that 
that could be done. 

The Chinese employed by the British Phosphate 
Commissioners were housed in one part of the 
island and the Europeans lived in another district 
close to the industrial installations. 

:--1r. Lw (China) concluded from that explana
tion that there was racial discrimination and asked 
the Council to take note of that fact. 

The meeting rose at 5.50 p.m. 

ainsi que le prouve le fait que les contrats que 
signent les Chinois prevoient expressement que 
le signataire s' engage a respecter les decrets et 
reglements de !'administration qui sont en vigueur 
au moment de la signature du contrat. 

En reponse a plusieurs questions de M. N ORTEGA 
(Mexique), M. HALLIGAN (Representant special 
pour Nauru) declare que la population n'a jamais 
fait d'efforts en vue de creer une organisation 
syndicate. Toutes les questions relatives a la 
fixation du taux des salaires sont examinees con
jointement par 1' Administration et par le Conseil 
de Chefs. Le Chef principal re<_;oit un traitement, 
en qualite de fonctionnaire de 1' Administration, 
mais c'est en qualite de Chef proprement dit qu'il 
discute des questions de salaire; il conserve done, 
de cette maniere, toute independance de jugement 
et de decision. 

Le salaire de base est le meme pour les employes 
maries et pour les employes non maries, mais il 
existe des allocations pour charges de famille ou 
autres, qui s'ajoutent au salaire selon le statut 
matrimonial ou le nombre d'enfants de !'interesse. 
D'autre part, !'instruction est gratuite, de meme 
que les services de sante publique et les soins 
medicaux. 

M. LIU (Chine) appelle !'attention du Conseil 
de tutelle sur la reponse a Ia question 19 et 
demande si les Chinois font l'objet de mesures 
discriminatoires en ce qui concerne le logement. 

M. HALLIGAN (Representant special pour 
Nauru) explique que les autochtones font grand 
cas de la propriete privee et qu'ils etablissent 
leur maison sur les terrains que leur appartien
nent; les Chefs ont reconnu, toutefois, qu'il y 
avait avantage a grouper les habitations et les 
indigenes se sont arranges entre eux pour qu'il 
en soit ainsi. 

D'autre part, les Chinois employes par les 
British Phosphate Commissioners sont loges dans 
une partie de l'ile et les Europeens habitent dans 
un autre district proche des installations indu
strielles. 

M. LIU (Chine) en conclut qu'il existe bien 
une discrimination raciale et demande au Conseil 
d' en prendre note. 

La seance est levee a 17 h. SO. 




